PARTENARIATS PUBLIC-PRIVÉ (PPP) (1^{RE} PARTIE)

Mardi 21 octobre 2003 (8h30 - 12h00)

PROGRAMME DE LA SÉANCE ET RAPPORT INTRODUCTIF

PROGRAMME DE LA SÉANCE

SÉANCE 1:

Président de la séance M. Patick JONES (International Bridge, Tunnel and Turnpike Association/ETATS-UNIS)

1. La mission et la stratégie de l'IBTTA

M. Patick JONES (International Bridge, Tunnel and Turnpike Association/ ETATS-UNIS)

2. Technologie dans le transport: cause ou effet?

M. Harold W. WORRALL

(International Bridge, Tunnel and Turnpike Association/ ETATS-UNIS)

3. L'accélération vers un équilibre de Nash dans les négociations des prêts en PPP

- M. David CRUSH (Banque Européenne d'Investissement)
- 4. Abandonner les taxes sur le carburant: quelle serait la conséquence sur l'industrie du péage?
- M. Edward J. REGAN (La Wilbur Smith Associates/ ETATS-UNIS)
- 5. Partenariats Public-Privé l'Expérience australienne
- M. Paul FORWARD (Autorité des Routes et du Trafic, New South Wales/AUSTRALE)

6. L'évolution du financement des routes à péage

M. José de NOBREGA (Investec Bank/AFRIQUE DU SUD)

SÉANCE 2:

Président de la séance M. José de NOBREGA (Investec Bank/AFRIQUE DU SUD)

1. Importance stratégique du programme national en Croatie sur la construction autoroutière et les occasions pour la participation du secteur privé

Ministre des Travaux publics, de la Reconstruction et de la Construction en Croatie

2. Difficulité de financement – Une perspective de l'Afrique du Dud

M. Mike PEO (Nedcor Capital Markets/AFRIQUE DU SUD)

3. Les aspects juridiques des PPP

Mme. Kantha RATTAY (White & Case/ AFRIQUE DU SUD)

- 4. Sommaire de l'activité récente du marché de la concession des routes en Afrique du Sud
- M. Leo RÖHRIG (Bakwena Platinum Corridor Concessionaire/AFRIQUE DU SUD)

5. L'évolution structurelle des marchés de valeurs pour les infrastructures

M. Gavin KERR (Macquarie Africa Ltd.)

6. Les outils des PPP, leurs possibilités et leur usage

- M. Anil S. BHANDARI & Mr. Jose L. IRIGOYEN (Banque mondiale)
- 7. Le rôle des PPP dans la réduction de la pauvreté, par la Banque Asiatique de Développement
- M. Tyrrell DUNCAN (Banque Asiatique de Développement)
- 8. Discussion: L'avenir du financement des routes à péage Chronique d'une évolution annoncée

Modératrice : Mme. Marlene HESKETH (Rand Merchant Bank)

SOMMAIRE

Sommaire	4
Introduction	5
The Impact of Transport on Poverty Reduction	6
Emerging Contractors Partners in Development	7
Policy support	8
Development strategy	8
Collaboration with other role players	9
Increasing implementation capacity	9
Improving the contracting environment	9
Procurement system	11
Conclusions	12

INTRODUCTION

Le PPP est un "mot utilisé à toutes les sauces " mais qu'y a t il derrière cette expression ? Les étiquettes utilisées dans le jargon du PPP tel que contrats clés en main, le BOT (construction, exploitation, transfert), le DBFO (conception, construction, financement, exploitation) ou les contrats d'entretien "sur niveau de service" sont utiles pour décrire certaines des options variées pour les projets de PPP, mais n'ont pas de contenu clair et unique. En fait, chaque solution de PPP est trop complexe et trop unique pour être caractérisée par un mot ou un acronyme. Définir des catégories nettes aurait toujours comme conséquence que des projets tomberaient entre deux catégories car leurs caractéristiques correspondraient à plusieurs catégories. En d'autres termes, il y a un nombre presque infini de solutions qui sont mieux décrites par un *continuum* que par des catégories. Néanmoins, pour éviter cette incertitude inconfortable, un certain nombre de guestions fondamentales doivent être étudiées pour aider le concepteur de projet à ajuster harmonieusement les paramètres du projet afin de répondre aux besoins. Un Partenariat public-privé (PPP) constitue un effort de collaboration soutenu entre le secteur public (organismes gouvernementaux) et les entreprises privées afin d'atteindre un objectif commun (par exemple, un projet de route) tandis qu'ils poursuivent leurs propres intérêts qui sont différents. Dans un PPP, chaque associé :

- participe à la conception d'un projet,
- apporte une partie des ressources (techniques, de gestion et éventuellement financières) requises pour réaliser et éventuellement exploiter le projet selon l'avantage comparatif de chaque associé,
- upporte une partie des risques liés au projet et obtient les avantages (espérés par chaque associé) que le projet crée.

Sauf dans quelques rares économies totalement contrôlées par l'Etat, les entreprises privées sont toujours impliquées dans la conception, la construction, l'entretien ou l'exploitation des routes. Mais l'association prend son vrai sens quand une société privée fournit un service global avec une autonomie et des incitations suffisantes pour produire des gains d'efficacité au profit de toutes les parties et en particulier des usagers de la route.

Dans la première partie de la séance présidée par Gerold Estermann, Coordinateur du thème stratégique 4 "Gestion et administration du système routier", une présentation d'introduction (par un représentant du Comité technique C9 de l'AIPCR, Alain Fayard) passera en revue les termes et les concepts utilisés quand des financements sont accordés ou garantis dans le cadre d'un PPP avec ou sans financement privé. Ensuite la Banque mondiale (Anil Bandhari) présentera la "boîte à outils" (*toolkit*) sur le Partenariat public-privé (PPP) dans le domaine routier; il s'agit d'un produit de multimédia visant à aider les décisionnaires et les professionnels de transport dans les pays en développement à comprendre et identifier les diverses options possibles pour impliquer le secteur privé dans le développement, l'entretien, l'exploitation et/ou le financement routier, et les questions soulevées par la mise en œuvre de ces options possibles. Ces présentations seront suivies d'une table ronde entre les conférenciers, les représentants des institutions financières internationales et les acteurs publics et privés.

Dans la deuxième partie de la séance, l'accent sera d'abord mis sur l'objectif primordial de la lutte contre la pauvreté par l'accès aux services essentiels et aux opportunités économiques ; actuellement 900 millions de personnes ne bénéficient pas d'un tel accès fiable. Ensuite la condition *sine qua non* d'un état raisonnable de l'infrastructure avant n'importe quel entretien, la nécessité d'un entretien adapté des routes à faible trafic et les conditions d'émergence d'entrepreneurs locaux utilisant des techniques à forte intensité de main-d'œuvre seront présentées. Deux conférenciers (Tyrell Duncan, Banque asiatique de Développement, et Dejene Sahle, Organisation internationale du Travail) ainsi qu'une table ronde traiteront de ces sujets.

THE IMPACT OF TRANSPORT ON POVERTY REDUCTION

Tyrrell Duncan, Senior Transport Economist, Asian Development Bank

The role of transport in poverty reduction is sometimes overlooked because it is so integrated within the services and production processes it serves. At first glance we see only the manifestations of transport, such as roads and vehicles, and not its underlying influence on economic and social activities.

Transport contributes to poverty reduction by enabling the productive activities that create pro poor economic growth, and by providing poor people — especially those living in rural areas — with access to economic opportunities and social services, and means of participating fully in society.

The extent of this contribution is affected by the overall economic, social and governance setting in the country or region in question; and by the framework of transport sector policies, institutions and governance arrangements.

With the adoption of poverty reduction as the overarching goal of international development, development institutions such as the Asian Development Bank have been eager to improve their understanding of how transport can best contribute to poverty reduction. The transport sector is among the leading recipients of donor financing. How does it contribute to poverty reduction? How large are the impacts. Which transport activities offer the greatest poverty reduction impacts? And under what conditions?

Past studies have had surprisingly little success in answering such questions. At least there is now greater recognition of the conceptual and empirical difficulties involved. These arise because most of the impacts are indirect — transport makes possible other activities that improve poor people's livelihoods and well-being. The impacts are often widely dispersed among the population, and take place though multiple rounds of effects over many years.

In his presentation to the 2003 World Road Congress, Tyrrell Duncan will discuss the emerging findings of a regional technical assistance (RETA) study by Asian Development Bank on Assessing the Impact of Transport and Energy Infrastructure on Poverty Reduction. This RETA has been undertaken in collaboration with the World Bank, the Japan Bank for International Cooperation, and the UK Department for International Development. Stage 1, which was completed in late 2001, consisted of a review of current knowledge and identified key gaps to be filled through research. In stage 2, domestic research institutes in three developing countries in Asia — India, People's Republic of China, and Thailand — were commissioned to prepare retrospective case studies of the poverty reduction impact of selected transport and energy interventions. These included a variety of cases of road and road transport improvements. Stage 3, which is due to be finalized in October 2003, will provide overall findings and lessons for future transport operations. Mr Duncan will describe the results of stages 1 and 2, and preview the overall findings of the RETA.

Further details about this RETA are at: http://www.adb.org/projects/Trans_and_Energy/.

EMERGING CONTRACTORS PARTNERS IN DEVELOPMENT

Dejene Sahle Advisory Support, Information Services and Training (ASIST) International Labour Organization (ILO) Arundel Office Park, Block 8, Norfolk Str., Harare, Zimbabwe Fax No.: +(263-4)369829: E-mail: <u>sahle@ilosamat.org.zw</u>

Key words: contractor development, employment intensive, public private partnership, contracting environment

Increased unemployment and poor access to essential services have contributed to the increase in the level of poverty. Governments with the aim of addressing these two core developmental problems have increasingly inclined in applying local resource-based methods of work that enables governments providing communities with cost effective and affordable transport access and create the much needed employment in the delivery process. Due to continued logistical and organizational problems associated with a direct governmental workforce, governments' ability to deliver reliable and efficient rural roads network in accordance with its own development plan has been weakened. The alternative and that is increasingly being practiced is the creation of public – private partnership aimed at jointly addressing the above mentioned developmental constrains, i.e. poverty and unemployment. This approach will improve governments' ability in providing an acceptable rural roads network in disadvantaged and economically neglected areas and in the process optimising the creation of employment. This will require a significant commitment from government and other major role players in the construction industry.

Policy support

Some governments have already taken the first step, to addressing poor rural accessibility and unemployment, by clearly highlighting these issues as priority in their policy documents and identifying the preferred methods of operations that have a positive impact in their fight against poverty. Poverty Reduction Strategy Papers (PRSP) developed by Governments of Kenya and Namibia are few examples that have clearly indicated government's preference on the increased application of labour-based methods of work in the maintenance and rehabilitation of rural roads as long as the methods remain competitive and efficient. These documents also outline government's intention to see the increased participation of small and medium local entrepreneurs in this sector.

...In areas where labour-intensive technologies are appropriate, especially in rural and minor feeder roads, the Government will sub-contract maintenance to communities which will use labour-intensive methods¹.

...Support and harmonize current efforts in the Ministry of Works, Transport and Communications and Ministry of Agriculture, Water and Rural Development to foster cash-based labour-intensive public works programmes by identifying and removing obstacles to their expansions².

Weak local construction industry has slowed down the partnership sought by governments to tackle poverty. At the same time special skill and competence will be required to apply the methods chosen by governments, i.e. employment intensive approaches. This has resulted in developing a new cadre of local contractors that will partner governments in their fight against poverty through improved access and the creation of employment. In some countries, these new cadres of players have become the foundation for the establishment and growth of the local construction industry. The Lesotho emerging contractor development programme that started in 1994, with a financial assistance from the International Development Association (IDA) and technical support from the ILO, has played a major role in strengthening the local construction industry.

Development strategy

The main objective for developing emerging contractors is the need to increasing government's capacity in the delivery of essential infrastructure and to create employment in the process with the view to improving the livelihoods of the people living in the area. In achieving this important objective and facilitate the successful outcome of the development process, some governments have already made important policy reforms in creating transparent and competitive platform that allows the participation of these new players. Reforms are made in the areas of financial management, procurement systems and procedures, classification of contractors, etc.

¹ Interim Poverty Reduction Strategy Paper, Government of Kenya, June 2000

² Poverty Reduction Strategy Paper, Government of Namibia

Collaboration with other role players

Although governments take lead in the development of emerging contractors, the development process involves various players in the industry and the creation of partnerships between the various players, where roles of each party clearly defined, will be essential. This partnership based on addressing common goals, including poverty reduction and employment creation, will contribute to the achievements of the development objectives. Programmes in Lesotho and South Africa have successfully partnered local financial institutions to secure emerging contractors' access to resources. Local financial institutions in the two countries eased the rigid requirements usually associated with loans to emerging entrepreneurs and agreed to provide loans to the entrepreneurs for the purchase of essential construction equipment and provided an overdraft facility to cover the day-to-day running costs of the contract. Risk sharing and minimizing mechanisms have been successfully negotiated between the partners and was operational during and post development period. The arrangement has enabled the emerging contractors to purchase some essential light construction equipment such as pedestrian rollers, waters tankers, pickup cars, etc. This partnership has successfully removed the high-risk label usually hanged on emerging entrepreneurs.

The National Construction Council in Tanzania has created a new classification for emerging contractors that have special skill, i.e. knowledge on employment intensive approaches. One of the requirements for registration under this class is the presentation of a certificate on successful completion of an accredited training programme on employment intensive approaches. This new classification will protect the client from unqualified service providers and will ensure quality of works produced using employment intensive approaches.

Increasing implementation capacity

In countries where governments have established partnerships with emerging contractors in the maintenance and improvement of rural roads, governments' implementation capacity has shown an upward trend. Experiences from Ghana and Lesotho have shown that the conditions of the rural road network have significantly improved and so have the employment creation potential of the government. As a result the Department of Rural Roads (DRR) Lesotho has now fully contracted out all its maintenance and rehabilitation works and а reasonable proportion of upgrading/construction works. Visual assessment on the conditions of the maintainable rural road network has shown visible improvements.

Improving the contracting environment

It is essential that the playground is levelled, to the extent possible, and encourages the participation of emerging entrepreneurs. It is also important to see the entrepreneurs grow in this competitive industry and be able positively contribute to the development process. A well-structured and organized training programme that covers technical, business and management issues are at the core of this achievement. Experience has shown that government and other role players in the industry have to revisit some of the rules and regulation.

Experiences gained in the development of emerging contractors with a special skill on employment intensive approaches have shown the needs for carrying out various interventions simultaneously. Some of these interventions are listed below.

Policy support	It is important that governments make essential policy decisions that contribute to the successful implementation of the development process by levelling the playground. Some of the policy reforms that are essential include: encouraging the use of pro employment methods of work, establishment of an effective and efficient financial management system, effective procurement system and procedure, contractor classification system that facilitates the participation of the emerging contractors, etc.
Training and awareness creation	There is a need to increasing awareness among the policy makers, professionals and communities on governments' poverty reduction strategy, the contribution of employment and the benefit of pro employment methods of work in the delivery process in tackling poverty. It is also important to conduct an accredited training programme to all players covering both technical, financial and business management.
Capacity building	Capacities of the implementing agency, consultant and the emerging contractors have to be strengthened. It is also essential that all players have the same understanding on the methods and specification of the work on hand.
Access to resources	This is an important area for successful integration and growth of emerging contractors in this competitive industry. The intervention may require a joint effort and support from both the public and private sectors. Emerging contractors lack start up capital to start and continue their business. In this context, access to resource will mean to provide support to the entrepreneurs enabling them fulfil their contractual obligations including the under mentioned.
	 Access to cash to enable the emerging contractors settles part of their commitments, including wages, material, etc., until they receive payments from the client for works already carried out. Bonds and guarantees as required by the contract document to cover for advance, bid and performance guarantees. Capital investment for purchases of essential equipment especially those that are not easily available in the open market for hire.
Continuity of work	To grow and make a significant contribution to the development process, it is essential that the emerging contractors be assured of access to continuity of work. Emerging contractors continue improving their competence by each day. Each contract contributes to the practical knowledge gained by the contractors and speeding up the growth of the most committed contractors.

Procurement system

Irrespective of the complexity and value of work, governments apply similar types of contract systems. These contract procedures have a high financial requirement in a form of various guarantees. Due to high bidding requirements, the current widely applied procurement system does not encourage the participation of emerging contractors. The complexity of the contract documents is also beyond the understanding of small contractors. This system will be more complicated if the source of funding for the work is from an external multilateral development partner or financial institution. Usually the funding agency demands the application of its own procurement procedure that is more complex and time consuming.

It is necessary to level the playground and create an even competitiveness in the sector. At the same time it has increasingly become necessary governments to direct their investment to addressing their development plan most importantly to address its poverty reduction strategies. The procurement system that will be practiced has to be appropriate to the work on hand and easily understood by all implementing agents. This approach supplemented by the need to addressing government's development goals has raised the need to developing a progressive procurement document and procedure. In this regard, the government of South Africa has introduced an Affirmative Procurement Policy (APP) that demands contributions towards the government's development and social goals (including employment creation and support to emerging contractors) during the procurement of services and supplies. Targeted Procurement is one such example of APP promoted by the Government. One of the recommendations by the team that carried out the Independent Assessment of Targeted Procurement was that ... professional service providers become more familiar with "social engineering" and employment friendly technologies, and match this with the capacity of the target group,³ This recommendation is widely applicable and provides direction for future pro development procurement system.

At a programme level, different procurement systems are developed. Most of the procurement systems developed have the backing of the local tender board and are reasonably transparent. The contract document developed by the Lesotho programme and was approved by the International Development Association clearly states the government's objective of supporting the emerging contractors and employment creation. This was clearly reflected under the Instruction to Bidders. *The Invitation for Bids is open to all bidders who can demonstrate previous experience of the satisfactory execution by labour-based methods of road works of the same, or very similar, works to those described in the Bidding Documents⁴.*

³ Targeted Procurement In the Republic of South Africa: An Independent Assessment, T. E. Manchidi and I. Harmond, April 2002

⁴ Instruction to Bidders; Rehabilitation Works, Labour Construction Unit, Ministry of Works Lesotho

AIPCR . 11 . 22.36.F - 2003

Conclusions

The participation of small local contractors in the maintenance, rehabilitation and improvement of rural roads is on the increase. Ghana, Lesotho, Tanzania and Uganda are some of the countries where small local contractors are supporting central and local governments in delivering essential services. These contractors are usually applying employment intensive methods of work in the delivery process as required by the government leading to the creation of the much-needed employment.

This positive partnership will be strengthened as the emerging contractors grow and expand their areas of coverage. For this it is essential that the contracting environment has to be conducive, transparent and offers equal opportunities to all players. It is expected that governments and other players in the construction sector may have to make all efforts to removing barriers that stand on the way of the emerging contractors growth.